
 

 
 

 
 
 

  Shropshire Council 
Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Tuesday, 21 April 2020 
 

Committee:  
Cabinet 
 
Date: Wednesday, 29 April 2020 
Time: 11.00 am 
Venue: THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING 

Members of the public will be able to listen to this meeting by clicking on the link  
 

 Click on the link below to listen to the meeting if you are using a PC 

 If using a mobile device, you will need to download the MS Teams app (free) before 
clicking the link 

 Use the link at 11.00 am on the day of the meeting and click on ‘Join as Guest’ 

 You may receive an error message or a request for login details if you try to gain access 
before 11.00 am  

 
Link for Cabinet Meeting 29 April 2020 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Members of Cabinet  
Peter Nutting (Leader) 
Steve Charmley (Deputy Leader) 
Gwilym Butler 
Dean Carroll 
Lee Chapman 
Steve Davenport 
Robert Macey 
David Minnery 
Lezley Picton 
Ed Potter 
 

 
 

Your Committee Officer is:  
Amanda Holyoak   
Tel:   01743 257714 
Email:   amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDExNTQ4OTktYmVkZC00YzFlLWJhYzktMjRhNzI1M2FkODgw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22b6c13011-372d-438b-bc82-67e4c7966e89%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%225e57f1db-bc26-470d-992f-b9d4e2deaf3c%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


 

 
AGENDA 

 
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
 

3  Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 4 
March 2020 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public, notice of which has been given in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  Deadline for notification is not later than 11.00 am 
on Monday 27 April 2020 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which Members have given due notice, the deadline for 
notification for this meeting is 5.00 pm on Friday 24 April 2020 
 

6  Scrutiny Items  
 
 

7  West Mercia Energy - Treatment of WMS Pension Liability (Pages 5 - 22) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Peter Nutting – Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for 
Strategy 
 
Report of Director of Finance, Governance and Assurance attached 
 
Contact:  James Walton 01743 258915 
 

8  Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership (Pages 23 - 30) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Ed Potter – Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services 
 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services attached 
 
Contact:  Karen Bradshaw 01743 254201 
 



 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Cabinet 
 
29 April 2020 

 
CABINET 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2020 
In the Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, 
Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
11.00 am - 12.02 pm 
 
Responsible Officer:    Amanda Holyoak 
Email:  amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257714 
 
Present  
Councillor Peter Nutting (Chairman) 
Councillors Steve Charmley (Deputy Leader), Dean Carroll, Lee Chapman, 
Steve Davenport, David Minnery, Lezley Picton and Ed Potter 
 
 
64 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Gwilym Butler and Robert Macey. 
 
65 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
None were declared. 
 
66 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2018 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Leader.  
 
67 Public Question Time  
 
A public question relating to speed of traffic in Radbrook was received from Mr C Lemon. 
 
A public question relating to climate and environmental impacts of the proposed North 
West Relief Road was received from Ms J Blackman. 
 
The full questions and responses provided are attached to the signed minutes and the 
webpage for the meeting.   
 
68 Member Question Time  
 
Member questions relating to Youth Service Provision and the post of Chief Executive 
were received from Councillor Roger Evans.  The full questions and responses provided 
are attached to the signed minutes and the webpage for the meeting.   
 
 



Minutes of the Cabinet held on 4 March 2020 

 

 
 
Contact: Amanda Holyoak on 01743 257714 2 

 

69 Scrutiny Items  
 
There were no scrutiny items. 
 
70 Local Economic Growth Strategies  
 
The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Assets, Economic Growth and Regeneration 
presented the report and referred to the significant amount of work undertaken with town 
and parish councils and other stakeholders in bringing the local economic growth 
strategies together.   
 
The strategies reflected the geography of Shropshire and the key sectors, growth and 
ambitions for each of the market towns.   The Leader added that the quality rather than 
quantity of jobs available was a significant issue for Shropshire and he hoped that people 
would get involved and participate in the consultation.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the progress with development of the draft Local Economic Growth Strategies to 
date and note their importance to the delivery of the Shropshire Economic Growth 
Strategy at market town level .  
 
To approve the draft Local Economic Growth Strategies as set out in Appendix 1 for public 
consultation. 
 
That the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Assets, 
Economic Growth and Regeneration be given delegated authority to consider the 
outcomes of the consultation, implement any changes within the final documents and 
publish the Local Economic Growth Strategies 
 
 
71 Transit Site Provision In Shropshire - Identification of Temporary Site  
 
The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Assets, Economic Growth and Regeneration, 
introduced the report.  He explained that provision of transit sites for the travelling 
community was identified in national legislation and was an undertaking made following 
the adoption of the SAMDEV.   
 
In response to questions, the Deputy Leader explained that: 
 

 the consultation period would be shorter than some in order to keep up with the 
timeline for the Local Plan adoption process; 

 The consultation would be publicised through libraries, local drop in sessions, leaflet 
drops as well as being available on line; 

 Failure to provide a site could potentially invalidate the whole Local Plan process. 
 
Councillor Ioan Jones, Local Member for Harlescott, addressed Cabinet and said that he 
had no opposition to this type of development but questioned the safety of the proposed 
location.  He understood that government guidance stated that temporary stopping places 



Minutes of the Cabinet held on 4 March 2020 

 

 
 
Contact: Amanda Holyoak on 01743 257714 3 

 

should be located in a safe and convenient place for the road network.  As this site was 
within the fork of two busy roads and adjacent to arable land he was concerned about 
potential safety issues with movement of caravans and slow vehicles, and the likelihood of 
the presence of young children close to fast traffic, tractors and heavy vehicles.  He also 
referred to the potential North West Relief Road, proximity of two car dealerships, a hotel 
and previous concerns about anti-social behaviour.   
 
The Leader encouraged Councillor Jones to participate fully in the consultation.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To agree to consult on the location identified on land identified at Battlefield, Shrewsbury 
for use as a temporary gypsy and traveller transit site. 
 
72 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2019/20  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate Support outlined the report and explained 
in detail how management action worked on a daily and monthly basis, with Directors 
expected to account for and discuss with Portfolio Holders any variations before feeding 
them back to the finance team and he and the Director of Finance Governance and 
Assurance to consider   
 
The full year revenue forecast at Quarter 3 was a potential overspend of £1.532m, an 
improved position from Quarter 2 of £4.455m. 
 
He drew attention to the key issues in the report set out at 1.7, and the decisions Cabinet 
had made following consultation which had resulted in removal of approximately £1.3m 
savings. 
 
The Leader reported that extensive lobbying of MPs and Ministers with regard to funding 
continued.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note that at the end of Quarter 3 (31st December 2019), the full year revenue forecast is 
a potential overspend of £1.532m, which is an improved position from Quarter 2 of 
£4.455m; 
 
To consider the impact of this on the Council’s General Fund balance 
 
73 Corporate Performance Report Quarter 3 2019 - 2020  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Organisational Transformation and Digital Infrastructure presented 
the report.  He drew particular attention to ongoing success for Theatre Severn with a 
4.8% increase in visits with 32% of ticket sales made to people outside of the county and 
the number of visitors to the Old Market Hall increasing to a record annual attendance.   
88% of Shropshire schools were either good or outstanding, significantly better than 
neighbours.   
 



Minutes of the Cabinet held on 4 March 2020 

 

 
 
Contact: Amanda Holyoak on 01743 257714 4 

 

He also referred to pressures on the health and social care economy from additional 
winter pressures and congratulated hospital discharge and adult social care teams for the 
significant improvement in rates.  Performance to date remained on target and within the 
top quartile of performers.   
 
Members asked questions about the number of affordable homes, delayed transfers of 
care attributable to the NHS, and renewable energy.  The Portfolio Holder encouraged all 
members to access the Performance Portal from 
https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com 
 
RESOLVED:    
  
To consider the emerging issues in this report 

 
To review the performance portal and identify any performance areas to consider in 
greater detail or refer to the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
74 Rural Youth Facilities  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services presented the report which set out a request 
for officers to explore the viability of a range of options for the provision of mobile youth 
facilities in rural areas, including exploring in more detail best practice nationally in relation 
to such mobile facilities.   A number of members recalled use of converted vehicles in the 
past to provide mobile youth facilities   
 
The Portfolio Holder said the aim of the work was to identify what would be most flexible 
and best meet needs of young people today. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet request officers to explore the viability of a range of options for the provision 
of mobile youth facilities in rural areas, including exploring in more detail best practise 
nationally in relation to such mobile facilities. 
 
That a further paper be brought back to Cabinet following completion of the exploration of 
Viability and consultation. 

  
 
 
Signed  (Chairman) 

 
 
Date:  

  

 
 

https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com/


 

 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
 
Cabinet 
29 April 2020 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
 

WEST MERCIA ENERGY – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 
 

Responsible Officer James Walton 
e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 258915  

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1. Shropshire Council, together with Worcestershire County Council, 

Telford & Wrekin Council and Herefordshire Council, is one of the 
member authorities (the ‘Owning Authorities’) of West Mercia Energy 
Joint Committee, formerly known as West Mercia Supplies. At the 
point of sale of the West Mercia Supplies stationery division (WMS) in 
2012, the existing pension deficit relating to the former WMS staff was 
retained within the continuing West Mercia Energy business and is 
overseen by the West Mercia Energy Joint Committee. It is proposed 
to transfer this pension deficit directly to a new body ‘WMS Pension’ 
overseen by a new ‘WMS Pension Joint Committee’. 
 

1.2. The West Mercia Energy Joint Committee formally approved a 
request to the Owning Authorities to take direct responsibility for this 
pension deficit liability on the 24th September 2019.  Having 
undertaken discussions via their respective senior Finance Officers, 
the Owning Authorities are each seeking approval to take on this 
liability, which is  proposed to be achieved by the transfer of this 
pension deficit to a newly created ‘employer body’ within the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund (‘WMS Pension’) managed and 
overseen by a new ‘WMS Pension Joint Committee’ comprising the 
same Owning Authorities. 

 

1.3. An equivalent version of this paper has already been approved by the 
Executives at Telford and Wrekin Council and Worcestershire County 
Council and is due to be approved by Shropshire Council, via this 
paper, on 29 April and Herefordshire Council on 30 April 2020. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet, subject to the Executives of Worcestershire 
County Council, Telford & Wrekin Council and Herefordshire Council agreeing 
to the same recommendations, agrees:   
 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 2 

 

A. To remove the responsibility for the discharge of its function in relation 
to the pension deficit liability in relation to former WMS employees 
(including Compensatory Added Years Benefits) as identified in this 
report from the business of the WME Joint Committee with effect from 
1 April 2020; 

B. To allocate the pension deficit liability identified in Recommendation A 
above to a new employer within the Shropshire County Pension Fund, 
called ‘WMS Pension’; 

C. To establish a joint committee pursuant to section 101(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, with Worcestershire County Council, Telford & 
Wrekin Council and Herefordshire Council known as the WMS Pension 
Joint Committee and delegate responsibility with effect from 1 April 
2020 to the WMS Pension Joint Committee to discharge the functions 
of Shropshire Council relating to the pension deficit liability from former 
WMS employees (including Compensatory Added Years Benefits) as 
set out in Section 5 below allocate to the WMS Pension employer 
within the Shropshire County Pension Fund; 

D. To approve the proposed governance arrangements set out in 
Appendix 1, and that the Council’s appointed Executive Members to 
the WMS Pension Joint Committee shall be the Leader of the Council 
and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Strategic Planning, as the 
Council’s current representatives on the West Mercia Energy Joint 
Committee; 

E. To delegate authority to the Director of Finance, Governance & 
Assurance (Section 151) to progress and agree the arrangements as 
set out in Section 5, including a relevant payment mechanism and 
finalise a Joint Agreement for the WMS Pension Joint Committee 
incorporating the terms set out in Appendix 1, in consultation with 
Section 151 Officers from the remaining Owning Authorities.  

F. To approve the treatment of the WME asset share to be fully funded 
with effect from 1 April 2020 using IAS19/FRS102 actuarial 
assumptions with the resulting additional cost of this funding option 
allocated to the WMS Pension employer within the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund.   

G. To delegate authority to the Director of Finance, Governance & 
Assurance (Section 151) to agree the final figures, of which estimates 
are set out in Section 6, and in consultation with the Section 151 
Officers from the remaining Owning Authorities.  

  



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 3 

 

REPORT 

 

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

3.1. WME’s Risk Register has identified a potential risk in bidding for future 
contracts while carrying the pension deficit liability for former WMS 
employees on its balance sheet as potential customers will consider 
the financial position (through the accounts) of WME in assessing their 
bid. In order to facilitate WME in bidding for future contracts, the aim is 
to put it in a position where, at least initially, it is not carrying a pension 
deficit (and certainly not relating to former WMS employees) within the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund. To achieve this the liabilities relating 
to former WMS employees would need to be removed from the WME 
business and instead more clearly allocated to the Owning Authorities.  
In practice this proposed change would make very little difference to 
the liabilities of the Owning Authorities which are currently responsible 
for their share of the net liabilities of WME including the WMS pension 
liability. 
 

3.2. To achieve implementation by April 2020, it is necessary for all four 
Owning Authorities to approve the proposal set out in this report.  
Failure of any Owning Authority to meet the necessary timescales or 
gain the approvals will result in the proposal not progressing and WME 
continuing to operate with and bid for contract opportunities showing a 
negative balance sheet each year, with net liabilities of around £5m 
each year due to the pension deficit liability. 

 
3.3. There is still a technical (albeit unlikely) risk that the retained WME 

pension liability could, under unfavourable market and/or actuarial 
assumptions and circumstances still deliver a negative balance sheet 
position for WME in the future. 

 
3.4. There are no direct environmental, climate change, privacy, equality 

and diversity and Public Health implications from this report.    
 
4. Options Consideration 

4.1. In developing the proposal recommended in section 5 below, the 
Owning Authorities have considered alternative options with their 
respective merits and disadvantages as follows: 
 

a. Each authority could make a direct payment to Shropshire County 
Pension Fund to remove the pension deficit. This option was 
considered and discounted at the time of the sale of the WMS 
business due to the significant financial cost to the Owning 
Authorities. This opinion, and position, has not changed in the 
intervening years since the sale and is not considered value for 
money. 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 4 

 

 
b. The WMS pension liabilities and assets could be separated from 

the WME business and allocated in equal shares to the four 
Owning Authorities via the transfer of the liabilities and assets to 
the respective Local Government Pension Schemes that each 
Owning Authority participates in. In principle, 50% of these WMS 
liabilities and assets would be transferred to the Worcestershire 
Pension Fund, to become the financial responsibility of 
Worcestershire Council and Herefordshire Council, with the 
remaining 50% being retained within the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund (but allocated to the employer’s liabilities of 
Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin, rather than Shropshire on behalf 
of WME) and being the financial responsibility of Shropshire 
Council and Telford & Wrekin Council. An application (signed by 
the four Owning Authorities) to the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government for a “Direction” could allow 
the transfer of the relevant proportion of WMS assets and liabilities 
(being the responsibility of Worcestershire County and 
Herefordshire Councils) from the Shropshire Fund to the 
Worcestershire Fund with the balance remaining in the Shropshire 
Fund (being the responsibility of Shropshire and Telford and 
Wrekin Councils). It should be noted that the original intention of 
these Directions was to allow the transfer between Funds of an 
employer’s entire pension assets and liabilities, so there was no 
guarantee that the Direction would be granted for a partial transfer 
such as this. Calculations by the Shropshire County Pension Fund 
actuaries would determine a subset of members which make up 
(as near as practically possible) four blocks of 25% of the WMS 
liabilities. Formal agreement by the Worcestershire Pension Fund 
actuaries to the figures and proposed allocation of membership 
between the two funds would be required before transfer of 
appropriate pensioner payroll, membership records and asset 
share from the Shropshire County Pension Fund to the 
Worcestershire Pension Fund, and splits to the relevant 
employers. This option would have resulted in one off costs of up 
to £80,000 and included the risk that the Secretary of State would 
not approve the necessary direction. On the basis of the 
discussions between officers of the four Owning Authorities it is 
not recommended that this option is pursued as it does not 
represent value for money. 

 
  



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 5 

 

5. Proposal 

5.1. Discussions between the Owning Authorities have identified a viable 
and value for money proposition to remove the pension deficit liability 
from WME and allocate it jointly to the Owning Authorities by creating 
a second Joint Committee to manage the WMS pension liabilities. 
 

5.2. It is proposed to introduce the above proposal from 1 April 2020. In 
doing so, the arrangements would be based upon the latest triennial 
actuarial valuation (as at 31 March 2019, and implemented across all 
employers from 1 April 2020) improving the quality of the information 
used at the agreed date of separation of the WME/WMS liabilities, and 
also removing the need for further actuary costs, as these are 
absorbed within the existing workload. Furthermore, the option to pay 
deficit contributions up to three years in advance (to deliver a saving), 
or other options would be available to be considered, forming part of 
the delegation outlined in recommendation E. The 1 April 2020 date 
also removes the practical difficulties of eradicating any existing or 
proposed pre-payment arrangements made by WME. 

 
5.3. The overall proposal is that the WMS pension liabilities and assets will 

be separated from the allocation of the WME employer and allocated 
to a new employer (called WMS Pension) within the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund.  

  
5.4. Given that the main issue in WME bidding for contracts is the 

appearance of its (and the WMS) pension deficit in its accounts, the 
recommendation is that the asset shares should be determined so that 
WME is initially fully funded (at the point that the position is 
crystallised), with the remaining assets (and the historic WMS 
liabilities) being allocated to the four Owning Authorities. This 
approach will transfer a slightly larger deficit to the Owning Authorities 
which will marginally increase their respective employer’s liability 
calculation of the new WMS Pension employer. Furthermore, it is 
recommended that WME’s pension liabilities should be fully funded on 
actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes using 
IAS19/FRS102 actuarial assumptions. This would leave a larger deficit 
to the Owning Authorities which will further increase their respective 
employers’ liability calculation of the new WMS Pension employer. 
These implications are identified in the Financial Implications section 
of this report.  

 
5.5. The proposal would result in the removal of the WMS Pension liability 

from WME’s Balance Sheet by transferring the responsibility for the 
liability to the four Owning Authorities, to be managed through the 
establishment of a new employer, whilst retaining the assets and 
liabilities within the Shropshire County Pension Fund. This resulting 
new employer would manage the WMS pension assets and liabilities 
within Shropshire County Pension Fund via a Joint Committee. 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 6 

 

 
5.6. The setting up of a new WMS Pension employer which is the 

responsibility of a new Joint Committee established by the Owning 
Authorities would enable any pension deficit to be separately 
identified, separately valued and monitored, and allocated to the new 
WMS Pension employer with the Shropshire Fund so that it remains 
the joint liability of the four Owning Authorities in a reasonably cost-
effective way without the transfer of risk between any of the parties. 

 
5.7. The proposal would require formal arrangements to be drawn up 

between the four Owning Authorities, for each authority to agree to 
establish a new Joint Committee and make appropriate delegations to 
the Committee for the management of its share of the WMS pension 
liability. To reduce administration, it would be proposed to replicate the 
membership and governance arrangements of the WME Joint 
Committee as far as possible for the WMS Pension Joint Committee 
so that the same Members sitting on WME Joint Committee could 
potentially also sit on a new WMS Pension Joint Committee and 
meetings of the two Joint Committees could be diarised to take place 
at the same venue and running one after the other. Shropshire’s 
member representatives are currently the Leader of the Council and 
the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Strategic Planning.  The WME 
Treasurer would take the role of Treasurer for WMS Pension Joint 
Committee. 

 
5.8. The governance arrangements for a new WMS Pension Joint 

Committee would be based, as far as possible, on the existing WME 
Joint Agreement. The WMS Pension Joint Committee would have 
delegated authority from each Owning Authority to be responsible for 
any WMS Pension Liability, and historic WMS Compensatory Added 
Years Benefits. Appendix 1 contains the draft governance 
arrangements proposed for the WMS Pension Joint Committee. 

 
5.9. The risks associated with retaining a pension liability for WMS remain 

with the Owning Authorities and are not influenced in any way by the 
removal of responsibility for the deficit from the WME Joint Committee 
and resulting change in accounting treatment. 

 
5.10. Deficit contributions of the Owning Authorities would be subject to the 

same triennial valuations and treatment whether they are the 
responsibility of and accounted for within the WME Joint Committee or 
separately by the Owning Authorities under a new WMS Pension Joint 
Committee.   

 
5.11. The pension liability arising from employees within WME (the WME 

Pension Liability) would continue to be shown within WME Accounts, 
with the expected IAS19/FRS102 calculations and (should this be 
necessary in the future) a deficit recovery plan drawn up and subject 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 7 

 

to the existing scrutiny and consideration by the business and the 
WME Joint Committee. The expectation is that these calculations 
would be significantly less impactful on the Balance Sheet, although 
the risk remains that an impact could be seen nonetheless. 
 

6. Financial Implications 

6.1. Worcestershire County Council, Herefordshire, Shropshire and Telford 
& Wrekin Councils have for many years been constituent members of 
a Joint Committee undertaking procurement activity. This business 
was originally called West Mercia Supplies, but following the sale of 
the stationery supplies business it has been renamed West Mercia 
Energy (WME). 
 

6.2. At the point of sale of the WMS division (April 2012) the business had 
a pension fund deficit as identified in the actuarial valuation of the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund.  The deficit related, in the main, to 
WMS employees whose employment was transferring as part of the 
sale. To deal with this position, the Owning Authorities had the 
following options: 

 
a. Transfer the WMS pension deficit to the buyers of the WMS 

business. 
b. Use the capital receipt from the sale, plus other Owning Authority 

funds (if necessary) to clear the WMS pension deficit retained by 
the Owning Authorities. 

c. Allocate liability for the WMS pension deficit to the continuing 
WME business and continue to make deficit recovery payments 
from any WME profits delivered. 
 

6.3. During the sale process it was identified that option (a) was unviable. 
Furthermore, the Owning Authorities concluded that they did not wish 
to forego a capital receipt from the sale of WMS as represented by 
option (b) which would also have necessitated a revenue payment 
from owning authorities to make up the shortfall between the value of 
the capital receipt and the larger pension deficit. As a result, the WMS 
pension fund deficit was retained by the Owning Authorities and the 
liability to meet that deficit was allocated to the continuing WME 
business. A deficit recovery plan was agreed with Shropshire County 
Pension Fund (SCPF) and revised every three years in line with the 
actuarial valuation. The latest valuation is being conducted at the time 
of writing, as at 31 March 2019, with contribution changes for all 
employers within the fund from 1 April 2020. In the 2019/20 Financial 
Year, the budget for WME deficit recovery payment is £161,726, plus 
£31,713 for Compensatory Added Years benefits (CAYs). 
  

6.4. While the direct financial implications of this arrangement within the 
WME Profit and Loss Account currently are affordable, the impact on 
the business balance sheet is significant. The pension liability is in 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 8 

 

excess of £6m which is not offset to any great extent by the business’ 
fixed assets (minimal) or working balance (generally in the order of 
£1m). This results in WME producing a negative balance sheet each 
year, with net liabilities of around £5m each year.  
 

6.5. In adopting Option C above, the resulting capital receipt from the sale 
of WMS was split evenly between the owning authorities and it is 
appropriate, therefore, to continue to apply this methodology to the 
Pension Liability calculation. In the intervening years no formal 
methodology was followed for the deduction of the pension liability in 
relation to the owners shares of WME profit. As a result, the actual 
deduction for each authority would have been incorporated within the 
distribution of surplus calculation and would have varied slightly from 
an equal share. There will be no backdating of the methodology, 
however, to adjust for this. Upon implementation, this arrangement will 
have a positive financial implication for WME (removing the WMS 
pension deficit from the balance sheet and removing the WMS 
pension deficit payments from the Profit and Loss Account) and there 
will be a reciprocal negative financial implication for the Owning 
Authorities. The Owning Authorities will be required to cover the cost 
of 25% of the WMS pension deficit payment annually. The Owning 
Authorities will, however, benefit from marginally increased 
distributions from WME as a result of the pension deficit payments for 
WMS no longer being charged to the WME Profit and Loss Account. 

 
6.6. Given that the main issue in WME bidding for contracts is the 

presence of the pension deficit in its business accounts, there is a 
presumption that the asset shares should be determined so that WME 
is initially fully funded (at the date the WMS pension liabilities are 
separated), with the remaining assets (and the historic WMS liabilities) 
being allocated to the four owning authorities in equal shares. This will 
potentially transfer a slightly larger deficit to the Owning Authorities. 
Furthermore, there is a choice as to whether WME’s pension liabilities 
should be fully funded on ongoing actuarial assumptions or on 
actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes, as the two will 
generate different answers. The Shropshire County Pension Fund 
actuaries have been asked to calculate the approximate figures using 
both approaches, and the details below provide an estimate of how the 
final figures may look. The figures have been calculated as at 31 
March 2019 as part of the 2019 actuarial valuation of the Shropshire 
County Fund, but will in due course need to be updated to the date of 
separation.  Given that IAS19/FRS102 liabilities have increased over 
recent months, as a result of falls in bond yields, it is likely to need a 
slightly higher asset allocation to WME (resulting in a slightly lower 
asset allocation and therefore slightly increased deficit on an ongoing 
valuation basis for WMS): 
 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 9 

 

Table 1: WME fully funded on illustrative ongoing valuation 
assumptions: 
 

 WME WMS 

Illustrative ongoing valuation position   

Assets 0.93 9.36 

Liabilities 0.93 10.79 

Surplus/(deficit) - (1.43) 

   

Estimated IAS19/FRS102 position   

Assets 0.93 9.36 

Liabilities 1.64 14.96 

Surplus/(deficit) (0.71) (5.60) 

 
Table 2: WME fully funded on estimated IAS19/FRS102 assumptions: 

 

 WME WMS 

Illustrative ongoing valuation position   

Assets 1.64 8.65 

Liabilities 0.93 10.79 

Surplus/(deficit) 0.71 (2.14) 

   

Estimated IAS19/FRS102 position   

Assets 1.64 8.65 

Liabilities 1.64 14.96 

Surplus/(deficit) - (6.31) 

 
6.7. The recommendation would be for the WME asset share to be fully 

funded using IAS19/FRS102 actuarial assumptions, and therefore the 
£1.64m asset allocation would form the basis of the figures. This 
would leave £8.65m worth of assets and £10.79m worth of liabilities 
(on the Shropshire County Pension Fund’s ongoing valuation 
assumptions) to be allocated to the four Owning Authorities (which 
would impact on deficit contributions payable, with the accounting 
deficit feeding through to the owning authorities’ balance sheets). The 
figures should be updated (as far as is reasonably possible) to the 
agreed date of separation of the WME/WMS liabilities, so that at this 
“strike date” WME has no surplus or deficit for employer accounting 
purposes. It is recommended that the final arrangements are 
implemented in line with these estimates by Shropshire Council 
Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the Section 151 Officers from 
the remaining Owning Authorities. 
 

6.8. By ensuring WME is fully funded under IAS19/FRS102 assumptions, it 
will actually be in surplus under on-going actuarial assumptions. As a 
result, WME may not be required to physically pay annual pension 
contributions to Shropshire County Pension Fund under this 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 10 

 

arrangement, as the actuarial surplus relating to former service would 
offset the on-going employers’ contributions for WME staff. While this 
may look unusual in isolation, the overall position is unchanged and 
there are no overall financial implications arising from this. 

 
6.9. The Owning Authorities would be required to make separate 

contributions for the WMS pension liabilities allocated to the new 
employer to cover deficit contributions and Compensatory Added 
Years Benefits. A separate contribution from each Owning Authority is 
required as the removal of the deficit from WME means that a share of 
the liability effectively sits with each Owning Authority to be funded by 
them, rather than being funded directly by WME from its income, prior 
to any calculation and distribution of profits.  Consequently, the WME 
profits distribution would be proportionately higher as a result of the 
pension deficit contribution no longer being accounted for through this 
mechanism. The payment mechanism for the proposal would need to 
be agreed between the Owning Authorities’ Section 151 Officers. 
 

6.10. Over and above the funded pension liabilities, WME is responsible for 
some historic Compensatory Added Years (CAY) benefits which 
currently amount to approximately £31,500 per annum. The 
recommendation is that these benefits should also become the 
responsibility of WMS Pension Joint Committee, so that the costs will 
then be split equally between the four Owning Authorities. 
 

6.11. To implement the proposal there have been limited one-off costs of 
£7,140 in 2019/20, as the majority of preparatory costs have been 
absorbed within the existing agreements between WME, Shropshire 
Council, Shropshire County Pension Fund and Mercer. There will be 
on-going costs associated with the managing and administration of a 
second Joint Committee and the cost of preparing a set of accounts 
for that new Joint Committee. These are estimated to be £5,000 and 
would be split between the four Owning Authorities and recovered via 
the agreed payment mechanism.  
 
Table 2: On-going Financial Implications estimate: 

 

Details Total Cost (£) Cost to each authority (£) 

Joint Committee 5,000 1,250 

Deficit repayment 175,000 43,750 

CAYS 31,500 7,875 

Total Costs 211,500 52,875 

Change in WME 
distribution of surplus 

(206,500) (51,625)1 

Net impact 5,000 1,250 

                                                 
1 Shown here for illustrative purposes using 25% distribution to each owning authority but will 
vary between authority and each year based on the distribution of surplus calculation.  



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 11 

 

 
6.12. The following set up costs have been incurred in reaching the 

recommendations proposed within this report: 
 

Table 3: One Off Costs: 
 
Date Details Value (£) 

Apr 2018 Work and advice in relation to the pension liability 
options – Mercer 

2,865 

Mar 2019 Advice/meeting/discussion on pension liability 
options – Mercer 

1,285 

 Costs already charged to 2018/19 WME Accounts 4,150 

   

January 
2020 

Work and advice in relation to the pension liability 
options – Mercer 

3,140 

March 
2020 

Interpretation and report production - Shropshire 
Council, Shropshire County Pension Fund 

4,000 

 Costs to be charged to 2019/20 WME Accounts 7,140 

 
6.13. It would be possible for the four Owning Authorities to make payments 

in advance (annually or three years in advance at each triennial 
valuation). This would generate a saving over the three year period, but 
would have a cashflow implication for the Owning Authorities. Given 
the complexity of the arrangements, it may be necessary for all four 
Owning Authorities to agree to adopt the same mechanism, and this 
would be reviewed following each triennial valuation. This decision 
would form part of the delegation in Recommendation D. 

 
 
7. Legal Implications 

7.1. Part VI of the Local Government Act 1972 and Part 1A, Chapter 2 of 
the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) makes provision for 
local authorities to establish joint committees. Provided that the 
functions to be exercised are executive functions, further to the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000, it is a matter for the respective Cabinets to determine the 
establishment of an executive joint committee and to agree the 
executive functions to be delegated to that joint committee.  Every 
member of the joint committee must be a member of their nominating 
council’s Cabinet. 

7.2. The functions to be delegated to the WMS Pension Joint Committee 
are not functions relating to pension or related payments due to local 
authority employees pursuant to the Superannuation Act 1972 which 
are identified in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000 as Council (not executive) functions.  
Each Owning Authority’s obligation to make payments to the relevant 
Pension Fund in respect of current or past employees for which they 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 12 

 

are responsible may therefore be exercised by the Owning Authority’s 
executive and delegated accordingly. 

8. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

8.1. The recommendations in this report relate to the accounting and 
practical treatment of the Pension Liability relating to West Mercia 
Supplies former employees. As such, these recommendations have 
no implications for the operation of the WME business or for the Local 
Authority and as a result there are no climate change implications as 
a result of the approval of recommendations within this report. 

9. Background 

9.1. Worcestershire County Council, Herefordshire, Shropshire and Telford 
& Wrekin Councils have for many years been constituent members of 
a Joint Committee undertaking procurement activity.  This business 
was originally called West Mercia Supplies, but following the sale of 
the stationery supplies business it has been renamed West Mercia 
Energy (WME).  Each of the four Owning Authorities have delegated 
their functions in relation to the procurement of energy and utilities to 
the Joint Committee and each Owning Authority has two votes each 
on the WME Joint Committee. 
 

9.2. The WME Joint Committee operates under the Joint Agreement, the 
latest version of which was approved by the Owning Authorities and 
for Shropshire Council this was at Cabinet on 6 September 2017.  The 
Joint Agreement sets out how the Joint Committee operates and that 
the four Owning Authorities are jointly liable in equal shares for the 
liabilities of the Joint Committee and the WME business. 

 
9.3. On 24th September 2019 the Joint Committee approved 

recommendations to: 
 

a. propose that the four WME Owning Authorities take direct 
responsibility for the pension deficit liability relating to former WMS 
employees (including Compensatory Added Years Benefits) and 
WME with effect from 1st April 2020; and 
 

b. subject to the formal decisions of the four WME Owning 
Authorities to agree the above, to remove the pension deficit 
liability relating to former WMS employees (including 
Compensatory Added Years Benefits) and WME from the WME 
Balance Sheet from 1 April 2020. 

 
9.4. It is a decision for each Owning Authority, rather than the WME Joint 

Committee, to agree that the Owning Authorities create a new Joint 
Committee and employer to take responsibility for the current WMS 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 13 

 

pension deficit so that it can be removed as a liability from the WME 
business. 
 

9.5. It is a decision for each Owning Authority, rather than the WME Joint 
Committee, to remove the responsibility for the pension deficit from 
WME and the Joint Committee’s management and to put in place a 
new mechanism under which the Owning Authorities take direct 
responsibility for the current WMS pension deficit.   

 
9.6. The aim of the proposal identified in this report is to create a new Joint 

Committee and employer to take responsibility for this so that it can be 
removed as a liability from the WME business to put WME in a 
position where, at least initially, it is not carrying a pension deficit (and 
certainly not relating to former WMS employees) under the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund. To achieve this, the overall aim is that the 
liabilities relating to former WMS employees will be separated from the 
WME business and instead more clearly allocate the liability to the 
Owning Authorities.  
 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Variation to West Mercia Energy Joint Agreement – Cabinet 06 September 2017 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

Councillor Peter Nutting 

Councillor Robert Macy 

Local Member 

All 

Appendices 
Appendix 1: Draft governance arrangements the WMS Pension Joint Committee 

 
 
  



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 14 

 

 
Appendix 1 

 
WMS Pension Joint Committee – Principles of the Joint Agreement   
 
Purpose 
 
1. Shropshire Council, the County Of Herefordshire District Council, 

Worcestershire County Council and  the Borough Of Telford & Wrekin 
(“the Member Authorities) have established an executive joint committee 
known as the WMS Pension Joint Committee for the purpose of 
discharging the functions relating to the Member Authorities’ liabilities to 
the Shropshire County Pension Fund (SCPF) in respect of the pension 
deficit and liabilities allocated to the employer body within the SCPF 
known as WMS Pension. 

 
2. WMS Pension Joint Committee is a joint committee of the executives of 

the Member Authorities established further to section 101(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, section 9EB of Part 1A, Chapter 2 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012.  

 
Governance Arrangements 

 
3. The Member Authorities have agreed that the Member Authority appointed 

as the ‘Lead Authority’ for the purposes of the West Mercia Energy Joint 
Committee shall be the Lead Authority for the WMS Pension Joint 
Committee with responsibility for the administration of this Joint Committee 
(and whose relevant standing orders shall apply), including appointing 
from its officers a Secretary and a Treasurer to undertake the roles set out 
below.  The Secretary and Treasurer shall liaise with the monitoring 
officers and section 151 Officers of the Member Authorities to enable 
those officers to comply with their responsibilities under Section 5 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
4. The responsibilities of the Secretary shall be as follows:  

 
4.1. to make all necessary arrangements for the publication of forthcoming 

decisions, convening of meetings of the Joint Committee and any Sub-
Committees, to ensure that the meetings and decision making of the 
Joint Committee are undertaken in accordance with legal 
requirements; 
 

4.2. to provide, or, where necessary, procure the provision of, all 
necessary legal advice on matters under consideration by the Joint 
Committee or relevant to the Committee’s functions; 

 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 15 

 

4.3. to arrange for the taking and maintenance of minutes of meetings of 
the Joint Committee and any Sub-Committees, the publication of any 
resulting decisions and ensure that the business of the Joint 
Committee at its meetings is conducted in accordance with legal 
requirements; 

 
4.4. to manage and co-ordinate the day-to-day affairs of the Joint 

Committee and its administrative support. 
 

5. The responsibilities of the Treasurer shall be as follows: 
  
5.1. to provide financial advice and information to the Joint Committee; 
5.2. to keep proper accounts of the monies received and expended by the 

Joint Committee; 
5.3. the calculation and apportionment of liabilities of the Member 

Authorities which shall be apportioned in equal shares; 
5.4. to arrange any appropriate audit requirements in respect of the Joint 

Committee; 
5.5. to prepare and present such financial reports or other financial 

information as may be required by the Joint Committee to properly 
discharge their functions. 
 

6. The Member Authorities shall be jointly liable in equal shares and shall 
indemnify the Lead Authority for the liabilities of the WMS Pension Joint 
Committee in respect of all claims, liabilities and costs incurred by the 
Lead Authority in fulfilling the obligations of the WMS Pension Joint 
Committee. 
 

Membership 
 
7. Each Member Authority shall be entitled to appoint two of their Executive 

Elected Members to serve on the Joint Committee until they cease to be 
an Executive Elected member or unless earlier replaced by the appointing 
Member Authority.  The appointed members shall wherever possible be 
aligned with the Member Authority’s appointments to the West Mercia 
Energy Joint Committee. 
 

8. A substitute member shall only be entitled to attend, speak and vote as if 
an ordinary member of the Joint Committee where, at least one clear 
working day prior to the date of the meeting, notice has been given to the 
Secretary that: 

 
8.1. it is impracticable for the named ordinary member of the Joint 

Committee to attend a specified meeting; 
8.2. the named substitute member will attend in place of their named 

ordinary members; and 
8.3. the named substitute member is also an Executive Elected Member 

 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 16 

 

9. Each Joint Committee Member shall observe and comply with the 
provisions of the Code of Conduct for elected members adopted by their 
appointing Member Authority (“Code of Conduct”). Where a Joint 
Committee Member attends a meeting of the Joint Committee they must 
declare any disclosable pecuniary and other interests as required by their 
Code of Conduct either at the start of the meeting, or otherwise as soon as 
the interest becomes apparent in the course of the meeting. 

 
Meetings and Voting 
 
10. The Joint Committee shall meet at least annually in February of each year 

on the same date as the WME Joint Committee meeting, unless the Joint 
Committee shall agree that further meetings are required at such time or 
times as shall be deemed necessary by the Joint Committee.  A Special 
Meeting may be requisitioned by the Chief Executive of a Member 
Authority, such requisition to set out the business to be transacted at the 
meeting and to be delivered to the Secretary of the Joint Committee in 
normal circumstances at least ten clear working days prior to the date of 
the meeting and the Secretary shall undertake the relevant publication of 
notices and documents relating to the Special Meeting. Where it is certified 
that the business to be transacted is urgent business the time limit for 
delivery of such requisition may be waived by the Secretary of the Joint 
Committee following consultation with the Chair of the Joint Committee. 
Wherever possible any additional meetings shall be held on the same date 
as a meeting of the WME Joint Committee.  
 

11. At the meeting in February and thereafter every year at the meeting in 
February the Joint Committee shall elect by majority vote one of their 
members to be Chair for the ensuing 12 month period and another 
member to be Vice-Chair for the same term. The Chair and Vice-Chair 
shall not be from the same Member Authority. 

 
12. The quorum of the Joint Committee shall be two members from at least 

two separate member authorities 
 

13. Any Joint Committee Members who are absent from meetings of the Joint 
Committee for three consecutive meetings (unless excused by the Joint 
Committee) or who communicate in writing to the Secretary to the Joint 
Committee a wish to resign shall thereupon cease to be Joint Committee 
Members.  The Secretary shall notify the relevant Member Authority and 
invite them to appoint replacement Joint Committee Members. 

 
14. Wherever the Member Authorities have the power to decide any matter by 

majority vote then each Member Authority shall have such number of 
votes as that Member Authority has representatives (or an entitlement to 
representatives) on the Joint Committee. Any question coming before the 
Joint Committee shall be decided by a simple majority of those present 



 
Cabinet 25th March 2020: West Mercia Energy – Treatment of WMS Pension Liability 

 

 

 
Please contact James Walton on 01743 258915 17 

 

and voting the Chair having the casting vote in the event of an equality of 
votes in addition to his/her vote as a member of the Committee. 

 
15. Each Member Authority shall defray the expenses of their own respective 

Joint Committee Members. 
 

16. The Secretary shall undertake the publication of notices of meetings and 
accompanying documents and conduct the Joint Committee’s meetings in 
accordance with the ‘Access to Information Procedure Rules’ as contained 
within the Lead Authority’s constitution ensuring compliance with the Local 
Government Act 2000 and Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 
17. Should an individual Member Authority wish to terminate their membership 

of the Joint Committee they may serve at least [3] months written notice of 
termination to take effect at the end of the financial year in which it is 
served (“the Notice”) to the Chief Executives of the other Member 
Authorities.  

 
18. Where an individual Member Authority has served the Notice of 

termination (“the Exiting Authority”), the Treasurer shall assess the 
liabilities of the Joint Committee as they exist at the date of termination of 
the Exiting Authority’s membership of the Joint Committee.  Upon exit, the 
Exiting Authority shall be liable for an equal share of any liabilities of the 
Joint Committee incurred up to the date of their exit, irrespective of 
whether the liability is claimed prior to or after the date of exit and the 
Treasurer shall calculate any amount due from the Exiting Authority as at 
the date of exit of the Exiting Authority.   

 
19. Where the Joint Committee requests a payment from the Exiting Authority 

for a contribution to its liabilities, the Exiting Authority shall make the 
relevant payment within 20 days of receipt of the request. 





 

 Committee and Date 
 
 
Cabinet 
 
29 April 2020  
 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

 
 
Responsible Officers 
 
Email: karen.bradshaw@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 254201 
           andy.begley@shropshire.gov.uk             Tel: 01743 258911 
         
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1  Since the Safeguarding Boards review in 2017, it has been an aspiration of 

senior leaders to build closer links between the Adult and Children’s 
Safeguarding Boards.  
 

1.2  In terms of the Community Safety Partnership, administration and officer 
support has historically been provided by Public Health until recent budget 
pressures in this area.  This presents Shropshire Council with an opportunity 
to review all of these statutory functions with a view to aligning our 
arrangements.  The benefits of doing this would be:  

 
 To improve the well-being of children and adults with care and support 

needs and the safety of the population of Shropshire 

 Reducing silo working between key safeguarding partnerships  

 Ensure Business Unit support 

 Introduce a consistent approach to the wider safeguarding  
  agenda with an Independent Chair  

 Work proactively as a joint Partnership on key issues such as: 
o Domestic Abuse 
o Exploitation 
 

1.3  In September 2019, Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board became 
Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership in response to Working Together 2018 
and the Wood Review 2016.  

 
1.4  We are now seeking Cabinet approval to extend these arrangements to 
 include the Adult Safeguarding Board and the Community Safety Partnership.  
  



Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             2 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

That Cabinet: 

2.1  Amalgamate our partnership arrangements and the respective Boards for 
Community Safety, Children and Adult Safeguarding  

2.2  That Cabinet grants approval for Shropshire Council to become the 
accountable body on behalf of the newly formed Partnership.  

 

REPORT 

 
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

(NB This will include the following: Impact on Children and Vulnerable Adults, 
Risk Management, Human Rights, Equalities, Community and other 
Consultation) 

  
3.1 Working in a joined-up way between our key Safeguarding Partnerships 
 offers opportunities to: 
 

 Understand risk for individuals, families and communities from an all 
 age, family and community perspective 

 Embed the concept that keeping our communities, adults with care and 
 support needs and children, is everyone’s responsibility.  

 Plan our response to risk more efficiently and reduce duplication 

 Share risk across the system  
 
3.2  It is possible that in bringing these areas together some focus may be lost, 

however, the opportunities this presents outweighs this risk.  Whilst it is 
recognised that the legislative framework for Adults and Children and 
Community Safety are different, there is a need to strengthen joint working 
particularly when the following factors are apparent:  

 

 Adult’s and Children’s services work with the same families or a  

  person is moving from Children’s to Adult Services 

 The presence of Mental Health issues 

 Alcohol and/or drug use 

3.3 If we do not provide business support for Community Safety work, there is a 
risk we will not fulfil our statutory duties (see section 6 below) in this area.  
This presents a risk not only to the individuals and communities of Shropshire 
but it could be a reputational risk for the council.  

 
 

4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1  Where the Council is involved in delivering services jointly with other groups or 

partnerships, either the Council or one of the partner members (if it is a legal 



Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             3 
 

entity) can act on behalf of the partnership as the accountable body.  The 
Council is currently the accountable body for a number of partnerships, 
including Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership.  Shropshire Council both 
receives and distributes money on behalf of its partners.  Proper systems of 
financial administration and control are in place for administering and 
accounting for any funds received and distributed as part of this work.  
 
The current budget available for the safeguarding board for 20/21 is as follows: 

 

 Adults 
Safeguarding 
Board 

Childrens 
Safeguarding 
Board 

Total 

Gross Expenditure 
Budget 

£228,720 £240,140 £468,860 

Partners 
Contributions 

(£55,000) (£123,860) (£178,860) 

Net Expenditure 
Budget 

£173,720 £116,280 £290,000 

 
 

5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
5.1  The amalgamation of the three partnerships offers an opportunity to reduce the 

number of meetings held in relation to these areas of work.  Meetings will also 
be set up with the ability to attend by Skype and/or conference call.  This 
approach will reduce travel and will benefit partners further away, thus 
contributing positively on our commitment to Climate Change.  

 
6. Background 
 
6.1  Our Community Safety statutory duties are to:  

• To formulate and implement: 
o a strategy for the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including 
anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment) 
o a strategy for combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other 
substances in the area 
o a strategy for the reduction of re-offending in the area 

• To have regard to the police and crime objectives set out in the Police and 
Crime Plan 

• To undertake Domestic Homicide Reviews 
 

6.2  The statutory duties of the Children’s Partnership are to:  
• Publish arrangements for agencies to work together to explain how they 

are safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children  
• Set out arrangements for scrutiny by an independent person 
• Publish an annual report  
• Conduct Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews 

 
6.3  Our Safeguarding Adult Board statutory duties are to:  

• Publish a strategic plan each financial year 



Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             4 
 

• Publish an annual report 
• Conduct Safeguarding Adult Reviews 

 
6.4  The local authority has two further related statutory duties which are to:  

• To agree risk and co-ordinate Prevent activity 
• Establish a Safeguarding Adults Board 

 
6.5  In 2017 following the “Review of the role and functions of Local Safeguarding 

Children Boards”, the Government Response and in anticipation of the changes 
to legislation (Children and Social Work Act 2017), Shropshire Council and its 
partners commissioned a review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board and 
its relationship with other partnership boards.  

 
6.6   The review considered: 

 The function and effectiveness of the Shropshire Safeguarding Children 

Board (SSCB).     

 The function of all the partnership boards within Shropshire.  This took into 

account cross cutting issues, shared understanding, and the opportunities 

for improved efficiency through joined up and complimentary working and 

business and administrative support.  

6.7   The review led to the proposal of the establishment of the Shropshire   
Safeguarding Partnership (SSP) which would have strategic oversight of the 
safeguarding arrangements for adults and children.  This has been considered 
and approved by both the Children’s and Adults Boards. Since that time, the 
proposal has been considered and approved by the Community Safety 
Partnership.  

 
6.8   The ‘Safeguarding Partners’ are defined by the Children Act 2004 (as amended 

by the Children and Social Work Act 2017) as the Local Authority, the CCG and 
a Chief Officer of Police, each having ‘joint and equal responsibility for local 
safeguarding arrangements’.  

6.9   The Care Act (2014) requires each local authority to set up a Safeguarding 
Adults Board, the main objective being to assure itself that local safeguarding 
arrangements and partners act to help and protect adults with care and support 
needs experiencing or at risk of abuse.  

6.10 The Care Act Statutory includes the following paragraph 

“Guidance Strategies for the prevention of abuse and neglect is a core 
responsibility of a Safeguarding Adults Board and it should have an 
overview of how this is taking place in the area and how this work ties in 
with the Health and Wellbeing Boards, Quality Surveillance Groups, 
Community Safety Partnerships and CQC’s stated approach and 
practice.” 

6.11 The statutory safeguarding partners for both Adults and Children are: 
1. Shropshire Council 

2. Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group 



Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             5 
 

3. West Mercia Police 

6.12 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires each Local Authority in England and 
Wales to formulate and implement a strategy to reduce crime and disorder in 
their area.  The Act also requires the local authority to work with every police 
authority, probation authority, Strategic health authority (now Clinical 
Commissioning Group), social landlords, the voluntary sector, and local 
residents and businesses. 

 
6.13 To amalgamate these arrangements and ensure all statutory partners were 

represented, the following organisations would also be required to attend 
partnership meetings:  

 
4. Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service  
5. West Mercia Probation Service 

 
6.14 What is currently called the Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership would act as 

and carry out the functions of the: 
 

• Children’s Partnership 
• Community Safety Partnership  
• Safeguarding Adults Board 

 
7. Additional Information 
 
7.1   This proposal includes the use of an independent chair for the three areas of 

work; Adult and Children’s safeguarding and Community Safety.  Not only does 
this provide a consistent approach across this agenda, the role also:  

 
 Helps to develop an environment of robust scrutiny and effective 

challenge. 
 Represents the partnership at other meetings and events locally, 

regionally and nationally.  
 Speaks with authority on safeguarding including representing the 

partnership with the media. 
 Act as the decision maker in relation to whether statutory reviews are 

carried out. 
 Ensures appropriate working relationships with key partnerships.  
 Engages with the Local Authority Scrutiny Committees and Health and 

Well-Being Board 
 Works with the Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner to ensure the 

Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership fulfils its statutory duties.  
 

7.2   A successful strategy and priority setting day was held with partners on 13th 
February 2020 and the following priorities were identified for the next three 
years: 

  
 Joint priorities are Domestic Abuse, Exploitation and Transitional 

Safeguarding. 

 Adult priorities are Self-Neglect and Personal Resilience. 

 The Children’s priority is Neglect. 
 



Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             6 
 

7.3   The governance of the partnership will consist of a number of groups with 
clearly identified functions including: 

 

 Networks that are made up of a wide range of partners.  

 Groups that will develop business plans to deliver the strategic (as agreed 
above) and “business as usual” priorities of the partnership. 

 Executive group that will keep a track of actions from statutory case 
reviews and approve guidance, training strategies and monitor the 
implementation of the business plans.  

 Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership who is responsible to for assurance 
and challenge between all partners. 

    
8. Conclusions 
 
8.1 Progressing with the amalgamation described above will further strengthen 

the ability of Shropshire Council to fulfil is strategic, statutory responsibilities in 
relation to the safety of those living in Shropshire.  

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 

The Wood Report – Review of the Role and Functions of Local Safeguarding 
Children Boards April 2016: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wood-review-of-local-safeguarding-
children-boards 

 

HM Government Report: Working Together to Safeguard Children July 2018 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/779401/Working_Together_to_Safeguard-Children.pdf 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

 
Dean Carroll (Adults, Social Services and Climate Change)  

Edward Potter (Children’s Services)  

 

Local Member 

All Members 
 

Appendices 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wood-review-of-local-safeguarding-children-boards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wood-review-of-local-safeguarding-children-boards
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/779401/Working_Together_to_Safeguard-Children.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/779401/Working_Together_to_Safeguard-Children.pdf


Cabinet 29 April 2020: Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership 

Contact: Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201/Andy Begley (01743) 258911                                                                                             7 
 

 




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 West Mercia Energy - Treatment of WMS Pension Liability
	8 Shropshire Safeguarding Partnership

